
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

lL1-J@137 ce- etzp oCASE NO.

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

'V S.

CHRISTOPHER ANZALONE,

Defendant.

PLEA AGREEM ENT

The United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida (dtthis Office'') and

CHRISTOPHER ANZALONE (hereinafter referred to as the 'ddefendant'') enter into the following

agreem en t;

The defendant understands that he has the right to have the evidence and charges

against him presented to a federal grand jury for determination of whether or not there is probable

cause to believe he comm itted the offense with w hich he is charged. Understanding the right, and

after full and dom plete consultation with his counsel
, the defendant agrees to waive indictment and

agrees that the United States m ay proceed by way of an information filed pursuant to Rule 7 of the

Federal Rules of Crim inal Procedure.

The defendant agrees to plead guilty to the sole count of the lnform ation charging

the defendant w ith a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349 (conspiracy to commit

wire fraud).

The defendant further understands and acknowledges that
, as to this sole count, the

Court m ay im pose a statutory maximum term of imprisonm ent of up to 20 years and a term of
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supervised release of up to 3 years. Further
, the defendant undrrstands that the Court may impose

a fine of up to $250,000. The defendant also understands that a restitution order will be imposed.

The defendant is aware that the sentence will be imposed by the Court after

considering thc advisory Federal Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements (hereinafter

'ssentencing Guidelines''). The defendant acknowledges and understands that the Court will

compute an advisory sentence under the Sentendng Guidelines and that the applicable guidelines

will be determ ined by the Court relying in part on the results of a pre-sentence investigation by the

Court's probation office, which investigation will comm ence after the guilty plea has been entered
.

The defendant is also aware that, under certain circum stances
, the Court m ay depart from the

advisory sentencing guideline range that it has com puted
, and may raise or lower that advisory

sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines. The defendant is further aware and understands that

the Court is required to consider the advisory guideline range determined under the Sentencing

Guidelines, but is not bound to im pose a sentence within that advisory range; the Court is

perm itted to tailor the ultim ate sentence in light of other statutory concerns
, and such sentence may

be either more severe or less severe than the Sentencing Guidelines' advisory range. Know ing

these facts, the defendant understands and acknowledges that the Court has the authority to im pose

any sentence w ithin and up to the statutory m aximum authorized by law for the offense identified

in paragraph 1 and that the defendant m ay not w ithdraw the plea solely as a result of the sentence

imposed.

The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any

sentence imposed undcr paragraph 3 of this agreement, a special assessment in the amount of $100

will be imposed on the defendant. The defendant agrees that any special assessm ent im posed
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shall be paid at the time of sentencing. The defendant agrees to pay restitution that w ill be in the

amount of approximately $15 million.

This Office reserves the right to inform the Court and the probation office of all

facts pertinent to the sentencing process
, including all relevant information

offenses com m itted, whtther charged or not,

concerning the

as well as concerning the defendant and the

defendant's background. Subject only to the express terms of any agreed-upon recommendation

contained in this agreem ent, this Office further reserves the right to m ake any recomm endation as

to the quality and quantity of punishment.

The United States agrees that it will recom mend at sentencing that the Court reduce

by two levels the sentencing guideline level applicable to the defendant's offense
, pursuant to

Section 3E1. 1(a) of the Sentencing Guidelines, based upon the detkndant's recognition and

affirmative and timely acceptance of personal responsibility. If at the tim e of sentencing the

defendant's offense level is determ ined to be 16 or greater, the government w ill Jile a m otion

requesting an additional one leveldecrease pursuant to Section 3E1.1(b) of the Sentencing

Guidelines, stating that the defendant has assisted authorities in the investigation or prosecution of

the defendant's own misconduct by timely notifying authorities of the delkndant's intention to

enter a plea of guilty, thereby perm itting the governm ent to avoid preparing for trial and perm itting

the government and the Court to allocate their resources efficiently. The United States, however,

will not bc required to make this motion and this recommendation if the defendant: (1) fails or

refuses to m ake a full, accurate and com plete disclosure to the probation office of the

circumstances surrounding the relevant offense conduct; (2) is found to have misrepresented facts

to the government prior to entering into this plea agreement; or (3) commits any misconduct after

entering into this plea agreement, including but not lim ited to com mitting a state or federal offense
,
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violating any term of release, or m aking false statem ents or m isrepresentations

governm ental entity or official.

2ny

The defbndant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the court
.

The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or sentence that the

defendant may receive, whether that estim ate com es from thc defendant's attorney
, the

government, or the probation office, is a prediction, not a promise
, and is not binding on the

governm ent, the probation office or the court. The defendant understands further that any

recommendation that the governm ent m akes to the court as to sentencing
, whether pursuant to this

agreement or otherwise, not binding on the court and the court m ay disregard the

recom mendation in its entirety. The defendant understands and acknowledges
, as previously

acknowledged in paragraph 3 above, that the defendant m ay not withdraw his plea based upon the

Court's decision not to accept a sentencing recomm endation made by the defendant
, the

government, or a recommendation made jointly by both the defendant and the government.

This Office and the defendant agree that, although not binding on the probation

office or the Court, they will jointly recommend that the Court make the following findings and

conclusions as to the guideline calculation in this case:

Guideline Calculation

* Base Offense l-evel: 7.

. Loss: +20. The relevant amount of actual
, probable or intended loss under Section

2B1.1(b)(1) of the Sentencing Guidelines resulting from the offense committed in this
case is between $7,000,0000 and $20,000,000. 2B1.1(b)(1).

. Victim s: The offense involved 50 or more victim s. 2B1.1(b)(2).

. Leader/organizer: +4. The defendant was an organizer or leader of a criminal
activity that involved five or m ore participants or was otherwise extensive. 3BI.I.

4
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Acceptance of Responsibility: -2. The defendant has clearly demonstrated
acceptance of responsibility for his conduct. 3E1.1(a).

. Tim ely Notification: -1. The defendant has timely notified the Governmcnt of his
intent to plead guilty. 3E1.1(b).

The sole disputed

applicability of the vulnerable victim enhancement under section 3AI
.I.

issue between the parties with respect to the guideline calculation is the

This parties reserve this

issue for resolution by the Court at sentencing.

10. The United States further agrees that if the defendant both (a) provides an

accounting of any remaining proceeds of this fraud and hands over any and all rem aining proceeds

and any substitute assets derived from this fraud and related frauds; and (b) complies with the

obligations set forth in in paragraph 10
, the United States will recom mend that the defendant be

sentenced at the low-end of the advisory guideline range
.

The defendant agrees that he shall cooperate fully with this Office by: (a) providing

truthful and com plete inform ation and testim ony
, and producing documents, records and other

evidence, when called upon by this Office
, whether in interviews, before a grand jury, or at any

trial or other Court proceeding; (b) appearing at such grand jury proceedings, hearings
, trials, and

other judicial proceedings, and at meetings, as may be required by this Office; and (c) if requested

by this Office, working in an undercover role under the supervision of
, and in compliance with,

law enforoem ent officers and agents. In addition, the defcndant agrees that he will not protect any

person or entity through false inform ation or omission
, that he will not falsely im plicate any person

or entity, and that he w ill not commit any further crim es
.

This Office reserves the right to evaluate the nature and extent of the defendant's

cooperation and to make that cooperation, or lack thereof
, known to the Court at the time of

sentencing. lf in the sole and unreviewable judgment of this Office the defendant's cooperation is
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of such quality and significance to the investigation or prosecution of other crim inal matters as to

warrant the Court's downward departure from the advisory sentencing range calculated under the

Sentencing Guidelines and/or any applicable minimum mandatory sentence
, this Office may m ake

a motion prior to sentencing pursuant to Section 5K1.1 of the Sentencing Guidelines and/or Title

18, United States Code, Section 3553(:), or subsequent to sentencing pursuant to Rule 35 of the

Federal Rules of Crim inal Procedure
, inform ing the Court that the defendant has provided

substantial assistance and recommending that the defendant's sentence be reduced
.

defendant understands and agrees, how ever, that nothing in this agreem ent requires this Office to

file any such m otions, and that tlzis Office's assessm ent of the quality and significance of the

defendant's cooperation shall be binding as it relates to the appropriateness of this Office's filing or

non-filing of a m otion to reduce sentence.

13. The defendant understands and acknowledges that the Court is under no obligation

to grant a motion for reduction of sentence filed by the government. ln addition, the defendant

further understands and acknowledges that the Court is under no obligation of any type to reduce

the defendant's sentence because of the defendant's cooperation
.

The defendant also agrees assist this Office in a1l proceedings
, whether

administrative or judicial, involving the forfciture to the United States of all rights
, title, and

interest, regardless of their nature or form , in a1l assets, including real and personal property, cash

and other m onetary instrum ents
, whercver located, w hich the defendant or others to the

defendant's knowledge have acculnulated as a result of illegal activities
. Such assistance will

involve the detkndant's agreement to the entry of an order enjoining the transfer or encumbrance

of assets that may be identified as being subject to forfeiture. Additionally, defendant agrees to

identify as being subject to forfeiture a1l such assets, and to assist in the transfer of such property to
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the United States by delivery to this Office upon this Oftice's request
, a11 necessary and

appropriate documentation with respect to said assets
, including consents to forfeiture, quit claim

deeds and any and all other docum ents necessary to deliver good and marketable title to said

property. The defendant agrees that the above named property is property constituting proceeds
,

or derived ffom proceeds, Of the conspiracy to commit wire fraud
, as set forth in the Information.

15. The defendant is aware that Title 18
, United States Code, Section 3742 and Title

28, United States Code, Section 1291 afford the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed

in this case. Acknowledging this
, in exchange for the undertakings made by the United States in

this plea agreem ent, the defendant hereby waives all rights conferred by Sections 3742 and 1291 to

appeal any sentence imposed, including any restitution order
, or to appeal the m anner in which the

sentence was imposed, unless the sentence exceeds the m axim um permitted by statute or is the

result of an upward departure and/or an upward variance from the advisory guideline range that the

Court establishes at sentencing.

The defendant further understands that nothing in this agreement shall affect the

government's right and/or duty to appeal as set forth in Title 18
, United States Code, Section

3742417) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 1291. However, if the United States appeals

the defendant's sentence pursuant to Sections 3742(1)) and 1291
, the defendant shall be released

from the above waiver of appellate rights
. By signing this agreement

, the defendant

acknowledges that the defendant has discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this agreem ent with

the defendant's attolmey.
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This is the entire agreement and understanding between this Office and the

defendant. There are no other agreem ents, prom ises, representations, or understandings.

W IFREDO A. FERRER

UNITED STATES AU ORNEY

A  >By:
M ICHAEL N. BERG

ASSISTANT UNIT D AT ATTORNEY

fBy:
DANIEL R

ATTORNE DEFENDANT

By:

PHER ANZALONE
DEFENDANT

oate, l-q-I v

7E-7: - 1L(Date:

1* - B - (:Ilate:
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